
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING  

REGIONAL WATER PLANNING GROUP-NETRWPG 

Wednesday, November 10, 2021 – 10:00 A.M. 

Region 8 Education Service Center 
4845 US 271 N 

Pittsburg, TX 75686 

In compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code, the 
Regional Water Planning Group D issues this public notice. On November 10, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., the 
North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group (NETRWPG) will meet in-person.  The meeting 
will be held the Region 8 Education Service Center, 4845 US 271 N, Pittsburg, TX 75686. The 
NETRWPG will consider and act on the following items:   

1. Recognitions.  Roll call.   
2. Public Comment/participation.  
3. Review and approval of minutes for August 4, 2021 meeting.  
4. Reports from liaisons: TWDB Project Manager – TWDB Planner; GMA #8 & #11; Region 

C & I. 
5. Accept resignation of voting member, Bruce Bradley. Consider appointment of successor to 

the position held by Bruce Bradley. Appointment will be for the remainder of the unexpired 
term. 

6. Discussion and Action as appropriate: Consider appointment of successor to the 
Executive Committee Member At-Large position, formerly held by Bob Staton.  
Appointment would be for the remainder of the current calendar year. 

7. Discussion and Action as appropriate:  Discuss the potential process for conducting 
interregional coordination regarding water management strategies during development of 
the 2026 Regional Water Plans.   

8. Discussion of letter from TWDB dated September 14, 2021, about the Interregional 
Planning Council nominations. Consider and take action on designating at least one 
member to serve on the Interregional Planning Council and one alternate for each member 
nominated.  

9. Discussion and Action as appropriate:  Review, discuss, and consider taking action on 
changes to the Region D bylaws.  

10. Discussion and action as appropriate: Discuss and consider adding a new non-voting 
member. 

11. Report of Region D consultants. 
12. Financial report by Administrator.   
13. Further public comment/participation.  
14. Adjourn.   

Additional information may be obtained from the Administrative Agency for NETRWPG: Riverbend 
Water Resources District, 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570; Office Telephone: 
(903) 831-0091; Office Fax: (903) 831-0096; E-mail: kyledooley@rwrd.org; Website: 
https://rwrd.org/region-d/; Attn:  Kyle Dooley, P.E., Executive Director 



MEETING OF THE 
North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 

WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

Agenda Item 3  
August 4, 2021   

Meeting Minutes 



NETRWPG Minutes – August 4, 2021 Page 1 of 4

Minutes of the North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 
August 4, 2021 – 10:00 A.M. 

The North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group (NETRWPG) – Region D met in an 
open meeting on Wednesday August 4, 2021, at 10:00 A.M.  The meeting was held at the 
Region 8 Education Service Center, 4845 US 271 N, Pittsburg, TX 75686. Notice of the 
meeting was legally posted.  

Jim Thompson called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. and welcomed everyone. 
Introductions were made and a quorum was present. Seventeen members of the planning 
group were present in person or represented by a designated alternate.  

The following voting members were present: 
Allen Beeler  John Brooks  Nicolas Fierro 
Cindy Gwinn  Dennis Hilliard Conrad King 
Richard LeTourneau Janet McCoy  Rolin McPhee 
Fred Milton  Ned Muse  Sharron Nabors 
Bob Staton  Jim Thompson 

The following alternates were present:  
Marla Abernathy  Greg Carter  Jim Davis  

The following voting members were absent: 
Russell Acker  Wade Bartley  Brandon Belcher 
Joe Coats Joe Bumgarner Lloyd Parker  Cheri Stuart 

Tony Smith of Carollo Engineers made a presentation providing an overview of the Regional 
Planning Process. 

The public was provided an opportunity for comment prior to any action being taken by the 
planning group. Please see the attached Public Comment forms.  

Tony Smith of Carollo Engineers presented information regarding potential process for 
conducting interregional coordination regarding water management strategies during 
development of the 2026 Regional Water Plans. This included compiling a list of strategies 
from approved plans in the state of Texas. He then identified the strategies and course of 
action for coordination between Region D and Region C. No action taken.   

The public was provided another opportunity for comment at this time.  
 Howdy Lisenbee, City Manager for the City of Commerce, Texas requested time 

before the board to be considered as a voting member of the Region D Board.  

Fred Milton made a motion to approve the minutes from the March 31, 2021 meeting. Dennis 
Hilliard seconded the motion.  Motion carried, all voting aye. 



NETRWPG Minutes – August 4, 2021 Page 2 of 4

Ron Ellis with Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) provided an update on TWDB. 
The 2022 State Water Plan was adopted on July 7, 2021. This is the result of 5 years of 
regional water planning complied into a comprehensive State Plan. The regular session of the 
87th legislature wrapped up at the end of May. The passing of HB1905 directly affects 
regional water planning.  This bill removes some requirements for the planning groups. 
Groups are no longer required to submit an Infrastructure Financing Report to TWDB. It also 
removed the requirement for applicants under the SWIFT Loan program to fill out an 
Infrastructure Financing Survey as well as removed the requirement that planning groups 
prioritize projects within the State Water Plan. Another bill that passed is Senate Bill 669. It 
eliminated a biennial water use report that the TWDB sent to the legislature. That 
information is now updated on the TWDB website. House Bill 2225 gives the Texas Parks 
and Wildlife Department the additional duties related to the Texas Water Trust. In addition to 
the duties of the TWDB and TCEQ, they are also now authorized to facilitate the dedication 
of water rights. The previous Interregional Planning Council was dissolved with the adoption 
of the 2022 State Water Plan. They will be soliciting nominations for the next council this 
Fall. The council will submit a report to TWDB in March of 2024. The previous council’s 
report is on the TWDB website under the section for the Interregional Planning Council. The 
funding for water planning is authorized in each legislative session that occur every two 
years.  This meant that administrators for regional planning groups were required to submit 
funding applications multiple times during a 5-year planning cycle. A change in Chapter 355 
of the Water Code regarding Regional Water Planning Grants eliminated that requirement. 
Now, Riverbend, the political subdivision administrator for Region D, can apply for limited 
reimbursement for personnel costs. Notices for committee and meeting materials also 
changed. The time frame for notices of committee meetings and posting of meeting materials 
increased from three to seven days. The notice requirement for adopting final plans increased 
from three days to fourteen days. Notices required for applying for funding for regional water 
planning has been removed. A new contract between Riverbend and TWDB to begin the 6th

cycle of water planning has also been executed. TWDB is contracting with the University of 
Texas Bureau of Economic Geology to assess mining water use and to update the mining 
water projections for the current planning cycle. A stakeholder survey developed for round 
five of regional water planning has an anticipated distribution date in August of 2022. The 
survey will ask for feedback on TWDBs staff assistance with planning, on planning group 
administration and, on planning for educational resources. Mr. Ellis then provided links to 
the TWDB Water Planning, best management practices guide, the Rules document, contracts, 
the studies on the use of mining water, and any other TWDB activities.   

Sharron Nabors stated that GMA #8 and Region C had no new updates.  

John McFarland stated that Region I has held one meeting for this planning cycle and plans 
another for August 18, 2021. An update for GMA #11 is that due to TWDBs revision to the 
ground water availability model, GMA #11 had to run scenarios on projected pumping an 
aquifer levels drawdown. Those scenarios yield a decrease in aquifer levels throughout the 
region. Those aquifer levels will affect Region Ds projects. 

Ron Ellis with TWDB played a recorded a presentation on Statewide Aquifer Storage & 
Recovery (ASR) Study or Aquifer Recharge (AR). This study was legislatively mandated to 
determine the suitability of aquifers for ASR or AR projects. Aquifer Storage & Recovery 



NETRWPG Minutes – August 4, 2021 Page 3 of 4

uses wells to inject water into an aquifer for the purpose of subsequent recoveries and 
beneficial use. Aquifer Recharge is the intentional recharge of an aquifer may not be done for 
full recovery of the water from an aquifer but instead for other reasons, such as reducing the 
decline in the water table or improving water quality. In 2019 the Texas Legislature passed 
HB721 directing TWDB to survey aquifer storage and recovery and aquifer recharge 
potential for the state. The survey, conducted with HDR Engineering, identified areas in 
Texas with three important components for a successful ASR or AR project. The Hydro-
geological Perimeter Screening identified aquifers with appropriate characteristics. The 
Excess Water Screening identified sources of water to inject or infiltrate and the Water 
Supply Needs Screening identified water demands for such projects. The scores from these  
three screenings were combined for a relative final suitability rating all across Texas. The 
results were published in December 2020.  

Jim Thompson, Chair, asked for a motion to authorize Riverbend Water Resources District 
(Riverbend) to execute a contract with Carollo Engineers to be the Technical Consultants for 
the 2026 Regional Water Plan for Region D. Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 
explained that the board reviewed proposals and selected Carollo Engineers as the technical 
consultant. Ned Muse made a motion to authorize Riverbend to execute a contract with 
Carollo Engineers. John Brooks seconded the motion. Motion carried, all voting aye. 

Jim Thompson asked for discussion regarding approval changes to the Region D Bylaws. 
Some changes were updating the name and address of the Administrator. Other changes were 
suggestions for the Board to consider. The Board decided that discussion and a vote would be 
postponed until the next board meeting. Kyle Dooley stated that he will accept suggestions 
for any additional changes to the Bylaws via email. No action taken. 

Jim Thompson presented the list of expiring terms of office for current voting members on 
the Region D Board as well as their successor. Terms of each position are for 3 years, 
commencing on September 1, 2021. Selection process for positions will consider any 
additional nominations from voting members. Positions to be appointed include positions 
currently held by Wade Bartley, Sharron Nabors, Joe Coats, Jim Thompson, Bob Staton, 
Dennis Hilliard, Cheri Stuart, and Brandon Belcher. The Executive Committee met before 
the board meeting and unanimously recommended to the board the following nominations:  
Sharron Nabors, Joe Coats, Jim Thompson, and Brandon Belcher to serve another term, as 
well as Wade Bartley to be replaced by Andy Easley, Dennis Hilliard to be replaced by 
Richard Garza, Cheri Stuart to be replaced by Billy Henson, and Bob Staton to be replaced 
by Bob Tardiff.  Mr. Thompson asked Mr. Dooley to research what needed to be done in 
order to allow Howdy Lisenbee to become a member of the Region D Board. Ned Muse 
would like Mr. Lisenbee appointed as his official alternate. Sharron Nabors made a motion to 
approve the appointees as listed and as recommended by the Executive Committee.  Fred 
Milton seconded the motion. Motion carried, all voting aye.   

Rolin McPhee asked if we could look into alternate methods for allowing those that are not 
permitted to attend meetings in-person due to travel restrictions placed on board members by 
their employers with regards to the ongoing pandemic. 



NETRWPG Minutes – August 4, 2021 Page 4 of 4

Discussion was also held regarding the next meeting. It should be close to the end of October 
or early November. Kyle Dooley will send a reminder out once a date is selected.  

Rolin McPhee made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Richard LeTourneau seconded the 
motion. Motion carried, all voting aye to adjourn the meeting at 12:18 p.m.     

______________________________________________________________________ 
Secretary Date 



MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5 

Resignation of Voting Member 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
Staff recieved an email from Bruce Bradley on Tuesday, July 27th, 2021, submitting 

his resignation from the Region D WPG.  The agenda had already been posted for 

the last meeting prior to recieving the resignation and so this item had wait for 

consideration on this agenda.  The item on the agenda would be to consider accepting 

the resignation and opening up this position to nominations as called for in the 

bylaws.  The bylaws call for opening the position for nominations within 45 days of 

the acceptance of the resignation and having a deadline for nominations between 30-

45 days from the date the public notice is posted.  If this item is approved the plan 

would be that nominations would be brought back to the Executive Committee and 

the full voting membership at the next meeting.  Mr. Bradley did have a nominee in 

his resignation letter.  It was Marla Abernathy and she is currently his designated 

alternate.   

 

 

 



MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 

Appointment of Successor to the 

Executive Committee Member At-Large 

Position 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
There is an opening on the Executive Committee for one of the Member At-Large 

positions. Bob Staton was the previous member that held this position.  Nominations 

can be made from the floor by voting members.  To appoint a replacement officer it 

will take at least a two-thirds majority vote of the voting members present.  

 

 

 

 



MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 

Interregional Coordination Discussion 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
At the last board meeting, there was a presetation of the potential water management 

strategies that could lead to the need for interregional coordination during the sixth 

cycle of planning.  This potential list came from a list of the strategies from the 

previously adopted plan.  When the topic of discussing the process by which to 

handle  any interregional coordination, the voting members wanted to review what 

had been presented and discuss the potential process at this upcoming meeting.  

Also, attached in the packet is a draft letter from Jim Thompson, Chair for Region 

D WPG, to Region C WPG discussing potential projects that could lead to 

coordination between the two WPG’s during this cycle of planning.  Mr. Thompson 

would like to have discusion about this draft letter as part of this agenda item also.  

 

 

 





























MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8 

Interregional Planning Council 

Nominations 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
TWDB sent out a letter on September 14, 2021, requesting each planning group 

submit nominations of at least one member to serve on the Interregional Planning 

Council for this cycle of planning.  TWDB is also requesting one alternate be 

nominated for each member nominated.  Nominations are due back to TWDB no 

later than February 28, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
   

P.O. Box 13231, 1700 N. Congress Ave. 
Austin, TX 78711-3231, www.twdb.texas.gov 
Phone (512) 463-7847, Fax (512) 475-2053 

 

Our Mission 
 

Leading the state’s efforts in ensuring a  
secure water future for Texas and its citizens 

 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

 

Board Members 
 

Brooke T. Paup, Chairwoman │ Kathleen Jackson, Board Member 

 
Jeff Walker, Executive Administrator 

 

September 14, 2021 
 
 
Dear Regional Water Planning Group Chairs:  
 
As you are likely aware, House Bill 807 from the 86th Texas Legislature directed the Texas Water 
Development Board (TWDB) to appoint an Interregional Planning Council (Council). The inaugural 
Council dissolved upon adoption of the 2022 State Water Plan on July 7, 2021.  Therefore, the 
TWDB is now soliciting nominations for the next Council, whose appointment will continue until 
adoption of the 2027 State Water Plan. 
 
The Council will consist of one member from each Regional Water Planning Group and its sole 
responsibility will be to provide a report to the TWDB which will be due in March 2024.   As a 
reference, the Council’s first report included recommendations on the topics of enhancing 
interregional coordination, planning water resources for the state, best practices for the future of 
planning, and addressing interregional conflict. The Council provided specific recommendations to 
the Legislature, the TWDB, regional water planning groups, and future Councils.  
 
Each planning group should submit nominations consisting of at least one member to serve on the 
Council, and one alternate for each member nominated. Nominations should be submitted no 
later than February 28, 2022. The Board anticipates Council appointments to occur in April 2022. 
It is important to note that due funding and staffing limitations, TWDB anticipates providing the 
Council with a limited level of facilitation assistance for this planning cycle. 
 
Nominations should be submitted to Sarah Backhouse, Regional Water Planning Manager.  For each 
nominee, please include the interest category the individual represents, committee membership (if 
applicable), a brief background statement including time served on the planning group, contact 
information (email, phone number, and mailing address), and any other supporting information 
deemed relevant by the planning group. 
 
Thank you for your participation in the regional water planning process.  For additional 
information, contact Sarah Backhouse at Sarah.Backhouse@twdb.texas.gov or at (512) 936-2387. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeff Walker 
Executive Administrator 
 
 
cc: Designated Political Subdivisions for RWPGs 
 

mailto:Sarah.Backhouse@twdb.texas.gov


MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9 

Review of Region D Bylaws 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
This item pertains to reviewing, discussing, and possibly taking action on proposed 

changes to the current bylaws for the Region D WPG.  There is a copy of a red lined 

version of the current bylaws showing the proposed changes.  Staff plans to go 

through the document and give explanation for each requested change so the board 

can discuss.  While the board can take action in accepting these proposed changes if 

it chooses, there is no requirement for action at this meeting.  After the board 

discussion of the proposed changes, staff could also make any discussed changes to 

the document and bring back a final copy for review and action at the next board 

meeting.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



North East Texas  
Regional Water  
Planning Group 

Bylaws 04/20/98 

Prepared for the 
North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 

by the 
Ark-Tex Council of Local Governments 



Table of Contents 

ARTICLE I. NAMES ................................................................................................................................ 1 
Section 1. Organization  ...................................................................................................................... 1 
Section 2. Regional Water Planning Area ........................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II.  ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE .............................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE III. PRINCIPAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE ..................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE IV. RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................................................... .. 2  

ARTICLE V. VOTING MEMBERSHIP .................................................................................................. 2 
Section 1. Composition ........................................................................................................................ 2 
Section 2. Terms of Office  .................................................................................................................. 2 
Section 3. Conditions of Membership .................................................................................................. 2 
Section 4. Selection of Members ......................................................................................................... 2 
Section 5. Attendance .......................................................................................................................... 4 
Section 6. Code of Conduct ................................................................................................................. 4 
Section 7. Removal of Voting Members ............................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE VI. NON-VOTING MEMBERSHIP ..................................................................................... 6 
Section 1. Mandatory Members ......................................................................................................... 6 
Section 2. Discretionary Members ..................................................................................................... 7 
Section 3. Code of Conduct ................................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE VII. DESIGNATED ALTERNATES .................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE VIII. OFFICERS .................................................................................................................... 8 
Section 1. Officers, Restrictions, and Terms of Office ...................................................................... 8 
Section 2. Selection ............................................................................................................................ 8 
Section 3. Removal of Officers .......................................................................................................... 9 
Section 4. Vacancies of Officers ........................................................................................................ 9 
Section 5. Duties of Each Officer ..................................................................................................... 10 
Section 6. Executive Committee ...................................................................................................... 10 
Section 7. Designated Alternates ...................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE IX. 
Section 1. 
Section 2. 
Section 3. 
Section 4. 
Section 5. 
Section 6. 
Section 7. 
Section 8. 

MEETINGS ................................................................................................................... 11 
Open Meetings and Notice  ........................................................................................... 11 
Regular Meetings ........................................................................................................... 11 
Called (Special) Meetings .............................................................................................. 11 
Agenda ........................................................................................................................... 11 
Quorum .......................................................................................................................... 12 
Applicability of Robert's Rules of Order ....................................................................... 12 
Public Hearings/Meetings Required By Law ................................................................ 12 
Minutes .......................................................................................................................... 12 



ARTICLE XII. COMMITTEES ............................................................................................................. 16
Section 1. Establishment .................................................................................................................. 16
Section 2. Membership ..................................................................................................................... 16
Section 3. Officers ............................................................................................................................ 16
Section 4. Meetings .......................................................................................................................... 17
Section 5. Books and Records .......................................................................................................... 17
Section 6. Code of Conduct .............................................................................................................. 17

ARTICLE XIII. COMPENSATION .....................................................................................................  17

ARTICLE X. 
Section 1. 
Section 2. 
Section 3. 
Section 4. 

ARTICLE XI. 
Section 1. 
Section 2. 
Section 3. 

MAKING DECISIONS .................................................................................................13 
Applicability; No Written Proxies .................................................................................13 
Decision-Making Process ..............................................................................................13 
Alternative Dispute Resolution ......................................................................................14 
Final Adoption of Regional Water Plan; Amendments .................................................15 

BOOKS AND RECORDS .............................................................................................15 
Required Documents and Retainment............................................................................15 
Inspection and Copying .................................................................................................15 
Availability of Reports ...................................................................................................16 

ARTICLE XIV. COST ALLOCATION ................................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE XV. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES ...................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE XVI. ADOPTING AND AMENDING THE BYLAWS ....................................................... 18 

ARTICLE XVII. RESOLUTION ADOPTING BYLAWS ..................................................................... 18 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

ARTICLE I. NAMES 

Section 1. Organization 
The official name of this organization shall be the "North East Texas Regional 
Water Planning Group" (hereinafter "NETxRWPG"). 

Section 2. Regional Water Planning Area 
The official name of the regional water planning area designated as Region Water 
Development Area, by the Texas Water Development Board (hereinafter TWDB) 
in accordance with 31 Texas Administrative Code (hereinafter TAC) Chapter 357 
on February 19, 1998, shall be the North East Texas Regional Water Planning Area, 
(hereinafter NETxRWPA). 

ARTICLE II. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE 
The NETxRWPG was established by appointment of an initial coordinating body 
by the TWDB on February 19, 1998, and any subsequent additional appointments 
by the initial coordinating body. The purpose of the NETxRWPG shall be to 
provide comprehensive regional water planning and to carry out the related 
responsibilities placed on regional water planning groups by state law, including 
Texas Water Code Chapter 16 and TWDB rules, including 31 TAC Chapters 355, 
357 and 358, in and for the NETxRWPA. 

ARTICLE III. PRINCIPAL ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE 

The principal administrative office of the NETxRWPG shall be the principal 
business offices of The Northeast Texas Municipal Water Districtthe political 
subdivision that is serving as the NETxRWPG’s administrator. The administrative 
officer of the NETxRWPG for purposes of the Texas Open Records Act shall be 
the General Manager of the Northeast Texas Municipal Water Districtexecutive 
administrator of the political subdivision that is serving as the NETxRWPG’s 
administrator. The Chair of the NETxRWPG shall insure that the mailing address 
and physical address of the principal office and administrative officer are provided 
to all members of the NETxRWPG and the Executive Administrator of the 
TWDB.

Formatted: Font: 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 16 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 16 pt

Formatted: Font: 20 pt

Formatted: Font: 20 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", First line:  0.5"



Page 1 Formatted: Left



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

ARTICLE IV. RESPONSIBILITIES 
The NETxRWPG shall have the responsibility for performing the functions defined 
in Texas Water Code, Chapter 16 and in 31 TAC Chapters 355, 357, and 358 related 
to regional water planning groups for the NETxRWPA. Foremost among those 
responsibilities shall be the development of a regional water plan for the 
NETxRWPA that identifies both short and long-term water supply needs and 
recommends water management strategies for addressing them. 

ARTICLE V. VOTING MEMBERSHIP 
Section 1. Composition 
The initial voting members of the NETxRWPG shall include the initial coordinating 
body appointed by the TWDB on February 19, 1998, plus the additional voting 
members appointed by the initial coordinating body to ensure adequate 
representation of the interests comprising the NETxRWPA stated in Texas Water 
Code 16.053(c), if present, and other interests determined by the NETxRWPG. 
Thereafter, the voting membership of the NETxRWPG shall include persons added 
or removed as provided under this Article and any 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member 
selected for voting membership under Article VI. 

Section 2. Terms of Office 
All terms of office shall be three years. All persons shall be eligible to serve a 
maximum of three consecutive terms as a voting member of the NETxRWPG, 
provided, however, if a member is voted on the board to complete an unexpired term 
of a resigning board member, that member will be entitled to serve the unexpired 
term  plus a maximum of three consecutive terms. Outgoing members shall be given 
the opportunity to fully participate in the selection process for their successors and 
shall serve until their successors take office.  The terms of all initial voting members 
shall expire on September 1, 2001. Upon the expiration of the initial terms, all voting 
members shall draw lots for additional terms of one, two or three years, such that one 
third of the voting members, terms will expire in one additional year, an additional 
third in two years and the final third in three additional years. If there is an odd 
number of voting members at the time that lots are drawn, one more than one third 
shall draw lots for the one-year terms. No later than ninety calendar days prior to the 
end of the one-year terms, the voting members shall initiate procedures to appoint 
successors for the voting members drawing one-year terms, utilizing the process set 
forth under Section 4 of this Article. Outgoing voting members shall be given the 
opportunity to fully participate in the selection process for their successors and shall 
serve until their successors take office. At the conclusion of the two and three-year 
terms described above, all subsequent terms of office for voting members shall be 
three years, the goal of staggering the terms of office having been accomplished. All 
persons shall be eligible to serve a maximum of two consecutive terms as a voting 
member of the NETxRWPG. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"



Page 2 



Amended as of 04/05/2017Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

Section 3. Conditions of Membership 
In order to be eligible for voting membership on the NETxRWPG, a person must 
represent the interest for which a member is sought, be willing to participate in the 
regional water planning process, and abide by these bylaws. 

Section 4. Selection of Members 
No later than ninety calendar days prior to the expiration of a voting member's term, or 
within forty-five calendar days of the removal of a voting member, the NETxRWPG may 
post public notice in a newspaper of general circulation in each county located in whole 
or in part in the NETxRWPA or post public notice on the NETxRWPG's or political 
subdivision's Internet website soliciting nominations for a successor, identifying the 
particular interest for which nominations are sought, stating the conditions of 
membership, delineating the method for submitting nominations, and establishing a 
deadline for submission of nominations between thirty and forty-five calendar days from 
the date that public notice was posted. Members of the NETxRWPG may also submit 
nominations in the manner prescribed in the public notice. 

The Executive Committee shall receive and process the nominations and, no sooner than 
ten calendar days after the deadline for submitting nominations, shall recommend a 
nominee to the voting membership as a whole, giving strong consideration to a consensus 
nominee from those individuals and entities that collectively represent that interest. The 
Executive Committee shall not be bound by the nominations received and may consider 
any person who meets the conditions of membership as a nominee. The voting 
membership as a whole shall not be bound by the recommendation of the Executive 
Committee and may consider any person who meets the conditions of membership as a 
nominee. 

The voting members shall make a decision for a successor by an affirmative vote of at least 
two-thirds of the voting members. An affirmative vote of two-thirds of the total voting 
membership of the NETxRWPG shall be required to appoint a nominee as a new voting 
member. If voting foils fails to select a new voting member, the voting members shall 
consider other nominations until a new member can be selected by an affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the voting membership. 

In addition to selecting new voting members to fill vacancies caused by removal or the 
expiration of a term, the voting members may add members to ensure adequate 
representation of the interests comprising the NETxRWPA. If such a new member is 
added, the existing voting members shall determine by not less than agreement of two-
thirds of the voting membership, the exact applicability of the membership term 
provisions and restrictions to the new member at the time of the 

Page 3 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

new member's selection. 

In both the consideration of nominees and the selection of new voting members, 
the Executive Committee and other voting members shall strive to achieve 
geographic, ethnic, and gender diversity. 

Outgoing voting members shall be given the opportunity to fully participate in the 
selection process for their successors and shall serve until their successors take 
office. However, no member shall participate in a vote in which he or she is a 
nominee. 

Because initial members continue to serve for additional terms of either one, two 
or three years at the end of their initial terms as set forth under Section 2 of this 
Article, this Section 4 shall not apply to the regular expiration of the initial terms 
of the initial members; however, this section shall apply to the selection of a 
successor for a removed voting member during the initial terms.

Section 5. Attendance 
All members shall make a good faith effort to attend all NETxRWPG meetings and 
hearings. Records of attendance shall be kept by the Secretary at all NETxRWPG 
meetings and hearings and presented as part of the minutes. Voting members of the 
NETxRWPG that have recorded absences from three consecutive meetings and/or 
hearings, or at least one-half of the sum of all meetings and hearings in the preceding 
twelve months, shall be considered to have engaged in excessive absenteeism and 
shall be subject to removal from membership under Section 7 of this Article. The 
Chair shall excuse an absence if it is made known to the Chair prior to the beginning 
of the meeting or hearing that the absence is related to one of the following with 
supporting documentation made available to the Chair: personal illness, family or 
urgent business emergency, or jury or military duty. An excused absence will not 
be recorded as an absence. Representation by a designated alternate does not excuse 
a member's absence. 

Section 6. Code of Conduct 
Members and designated alternates of the NETxRWPG shall ethically conduct the 
business of the NETxRWPG and shall avoid any form or appearance of a conflict 
of interest, real or apparent, by observing the following: 

(a) No member or designated alternate of the NETxRWPG shall: 
(1) Solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from 
suppliers or potential suppliers of services, materials, or equipment, including 
subcontractors under recipient contracts; or 

Page 4 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

(2) Participate in the selection, award, or administration of a procurement 
where the member or designated alternate has a financial or other substantive 
interest in the organization being considered for award. Such conflict may be 
due to any of the following having a financial or familial relationship with the 
organization: 

i) the member or designated alternate; 
ii) the members or designated alternates family; 
iii) the members or designated alternate business partner(s); or 
iv) a person or organization that employs, or is about to employ, any of the 

persons listed in (i)-(iii), above. 
(3) Participate in any deliberation, decision, or vote that would constitute a 

conflict of interest under federal, state, or local law. 

(b) Potential conflicts of interest shall be clearly stated by the voting member or 
designated alternate prior to any deliberation or action on an agenda item with 
which the voting member or designated alternate may be in conflict. Where the 
potential conflict is restricted to a divisible portion of an agenda item, the Chair 
may divide the agenda item into parts, at the Chair discretion, for deliberation 
and voting purposes. An abstention from participation in deliberations, 
decisions, or voting and the reasons therefor shall be noted in the minutes. 

Section 7. Removal of Voting Members 
(a) Grounds for Removal of Voting Members. The following shall constitute 
grounds for removal of a voting member: 

(1) engaging in excessive absenteeism as defined under Section 5 of this 
 Article; 

(2) death; 
(3) resignation; 
(4) failure to abide by the code of conduct provisions set forth under Section 6 

of this Article; 
(5) appointment of a successor by the voting members upon expiration of the 

member term; 
(6) change in status so that the member no longer represents the interest he or 

she was selected to represent; 
(7) falsifying documents; 
(8) any other serious violation of these bylaws as may be determined by the 

voting members; or 
(9) the voting members designated alternate engages in any acts described in 

subdivisions (4), (7), or (8) of this subsection. 

Page 5 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering



NETRWPG Minutes for June 17, 1998 

Page Three 

The selection continued and voting was made on the two teams with the most votes. 

Bucher, Willis & Ratliff received 12 votes, and Alan Plummer received 9 votes during 
this selection process. Bucher, Willis & Ratliff received a majority of the Group. 

Motion was made by Ruth Culver, second by Terry Winn to select Bucher, Willis 
& Ratliff to perform the scope of work for Region D. Motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Ray Flemons, Sr. Vice President made a brief statement and stated his 
appreciation for being selected to perform the scope of work. 

Pursuant to Agenda Item No. 3, motion was made to amend Article V, Section 1. to 
provide that there will be no more than twenty-three (23) voting members on the full 
Group. By consensus motion, it was recognized that Ralph Rogers had resigned and 
that his resignation has been accepted. Motion was made to amend Article VI, Section 
1.(b) to provide that within 45 days of adoption of the Bylaws, the NETRWPG shall 
post notice to solicit nominations for persons to serve as 31 TAC Section 357.4(g)(4) 
members. All motions made pursuant to Agenda Item No. 3 passed unanimously. 

Motion to appoint Mendy Rabicoff as Liaison to Region I was made by David 
Parsons, second by Terry Winn. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion to appoint Ed Withers as Liaison to Region C was made by Mike 
Huddleston, second by Bill Rice. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion to appoint the following non-voting members who have headquarters outside 
Region D but who have at least 1,000 acre feet of water rights inside Region D: 

Sam Collins — Sabine River Authority 
Robert Mansell — North Texas Municipal Water District 
W. David Ryburn — City of Irving 
Larry N. Patterson — City of Dallas 
Winston Holley - SWEPCO 

Motion was made by Sue Ann Harting, second by John Bradley. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

Motion was made by Gary Jackson, second by Vernon Rowe, to appoint James A. 
Withaeger, as a non-voting member representing U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
a Federal Agency. 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

(b) Process for Removing Voting Members. Voting members may be removed 
at any time for any of the grounds for removal of voting members set forth in 
subsection (a) of this section. Any member with knowledge or suspicion that a 
voting member or designated alternate has engaged in acts or that events have 
occurred constituting a ground for removal under subsection (a) of this section 
shall report such information or suspicion to the Chair. The Chair, upon discovering 
or receiving such information, shall make a written request to that member for an 
explanation as to why he or she should not be removed from voting membership. 
The member shall make written response to the Chair within fifteen calendar days 
from the date of receipt of the Chair request. Within five calendar days of receipt of 
the members response, the Chair shall forward copies of the response to the voting 
members. If the Chair continues to suspect that a ground for removal may exist, if 
the member fails to make a timely response to the Chair request, or if a voting 
member requests its inclusion on the agenda after reviewing the written response 
from the accused member, the Chair shall place an item on the next subsequent 
meeting agenda calling for the removal of the member. At the meeting, the member 
subject to the possible removal action may present evidence of why he or she should 
not be removed. The voting members may remove the member by not less than 
agreement of two-thirds of the voting membership. The member subject to the 
removal action shall not participate in any way in the removal decision, nor shall 
his or her membership count as part of the total voting membership for purposes of 
calculating a two-thirds vote. 

ARTICLE VI. NON-VOTING MEMBERSHIP 
Section 1. Mandatory Members 
(a) The voting members of the NETxRWPG shall add the non-voting members set 
forth in 31 TAC §357.4(g)(1)-(g)(3) and accept the designees appointed by the 
entities set forth therein. Such designees shall have no terms of office and shall 
serve until replaced by the designating entity. However, if the voting members 
decide by not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting membership, that a 
particular designee is hindering the regional water planning efforts of the 
NETxRWPG, the Chair shall make a written request within ten calendar days to 
the entity requesting the designation of another person to serve as the entity's 
designee. 

(b)The voting members of the NETxRWPG shall add at least one non-voting 
member as set forth in 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4). Within thirty calendar days of 
adoption of these bylaws, or within forty-five calendar days of the removal of a 31 
TAC §357.4(g)(4) member, the NETxRWPG shall may post public notice in a 
newspaper of general circulation in each county located in whole or in part in the 

Page 6 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.1", First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, No underline



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

NETxRWPA or post public notice on the NETxRWPG's or political subdivision's 
Internet website, soliciting nominations for persons to serve as a 31 TAC 
§357.4(g)(4) member, stating the conditions of membership, delineating the 
method for submitting nominations, and establishing a deadline for submission of 
nominations between thirty and forty-five calendar days from the date that public notice 
was posted.of no later that twenty-one calendar days from the date notice was 
posted. Members of the NETxRWPG may also submit nominations in the manner 
prescribed in the public notice. 

The Executive Committee shall receive and process the nominations and, after the 
deadline for submitting nominations, shall recommend a nominee to the voting 
membership as a whole, giving strong consideration to a consensus nominee from 
those individuals and entities that collectively represent the interest as described in 
31 TAC §357.4(g)(4). The Executive Committee shall not be bound by the 
nominations received and may consider any person who meets the conditions of 
membership as a nominee. The voting membership as a whole shall not be bound 
by the recommendation of the Executive Committee and may consider any person 
who meets the conditions of membership as a nominee. 

The voting members shall make a decision for a new member or successor by an 
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the voting members. An affirmative vote 
of two-thirds of the total voting membership of the NETxRWPG shall be required 
to appoint a nominee as a non-voting 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member. If voting fails 
to select a member, the voting members shall consider other nominations until a 31 
TAC 357.4(g)(4) member can be selected by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of 
the voting membership. 

Once selected, a 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) non-voting member shall have no term of 
office and shall serve until removed by the voting members by not less than an 
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the voting membership. 

(c) The voting members may at any time, including the time of initial selection of 
a 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member, convert the membership of a 31 TAC 357.4(g)(4) 
non-voting member into a voting membership by a two-thirds vote of the voting 
membership. If selected to be a voting member, a 31 TAC 357.4(g)(4) member 
shall have the rights, duties, terms, conditions, and other privileges and obligations 
of regular voting members. The voting members, excluding the 31 TAC 
§357.4(g)(4) member subject to the possible membership conversion, shall 
determine the exact applicability of the membership term provisions and 
restrictions to the 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member at the time of such conversion by 
not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting membership. 

(d) The voting members, excluding the 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member subject to the 
possible membership conversion, may at any time convert the membership of a 

Page 7 

Formatted: Space Before:  1.6 pt, Line spacing:  Exactly

11.5 pt



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) voting member into a non-voting membership, by not less than 
an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the voting membership, not including the voting 
membership of the 31 TAC §357.4(g)(4) member subject to the possible membership 
conversion. 

Section 2. Discretionary Members 
The voting members of the NETxRWPG may add or remove as a non-voting 
member an entity set forth in 31 TAC §357.4(h) by two-thirds vote of the voting 
membership. If an entity is added, the Chair shall make a written request within ten 
calendar days to the entity requesting the designation of a person to serve as the 
entity's designee. Such designees shall have no terms of office and shall serve until 
replaced by the designating entity or until the entity is removed as a nonvoting 
member. However, if the voting members determine by a two-thirds vote of the 
voting membership that a particular designee is hindering the regional water 
planning efforts of the NETxRWPG and that the entity should remain as a nonvoting 
member, the Chair shall make a written request within ten calendar days to the entity 
requesting the designation of another person to serve as the entity's designee. 

Section 3. Code of Conduct 
All non-voting members shall comply with the code of conduct provisions under 
Section 6 (Conflict of Interests) of Article V of these bylaws. 

ARTICLE VII. DESIGNATED ALTERNATES 
Each member shall designate an alternate to represent him/her when he/she is unable 
to attend a meeting or hearing. Each member must notify the Chair in writing of the 
name and address of the members designated alternate at least forty-eight hours prior 
to the first meeting or hearing at which the designated alternate will appear on behalf 
of the member. If the member fails to provide such notice, the Chair may forbid the 
participation of the designated alternate at the meeting or hearing. The Chair shall 
not recognize the designation of more than one alternate per member at any given 
time. The Chair shall not recognize more than two alternate designations of any kind 
per member per calendar year unless the NETxRWPG expressly decides to waive 
this provision.

The designated alternate shall enjoy the same voting privileges, or lack thereof, and 
shall be bound by the same duties, terms, and conditions as the member they 
represent, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws. However, a designated 
alternate for a voting member who serves as an officer shall not be allowed to 

Page 8 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

serve in the capacity as an officer in the member's absence. 

The Chair shall provide each member with a current list of all members and 
their designated alternates. 

ARTICLE VIII. OFFICERS 

Section 1. Officers, Restrictions, and Terms of
Office 

Voting members of the Next NETxRWPG shall select from the voting membership 
a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer to serve as officers. Each officer shall 
serve a term of one calendar year. However, the terms of the initial officers selected 
under Section 2 of this Article shall expire when the regular officers take office as 
provided under this Article. Except as provided under Section 4 of this Article, an 
officer shall serve until his or her successor takes office. Elections shall be held 
annually, with no restrictions on the number of consecutive terms an individual may 
serve as an officer other than those that apply because of his or her status as a voting 
member under these bylaws. 

Section 2. Selection 
(a) Initial Officers. Within twenty eight days after the adoption of these bylaws, 
the voting members shall select initial officers. Nominations shall be made from 
the floor by voting members. The voting members shall select officers from 
among the nominees by not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting 
members present. 

(b) Regular Officers. Regular officers shall be selected at the first meeting of 
each calendar year after the calendar year in which these bylaws were adopted. 
Written notice of the meeting to select officers shall be mailed or emailed to all 
members of the NETxRWPG by the current Secretary thirty calendar days prior 
to the meeting. Nominations shall be made from the floor by voting members. 
The voting members shall select officers from among the nominees by not less 
than agreement of two-thirds of the voting members present. 

Section 3. Removal of Officers 
Any officer may be removed from office for any of the grounds for removal of voting 
members set forth under Article V of these bylaws, or for repeated failure to carry 
out the duties of the office, by but not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting 
members present. Removal of an officer shall be set as an agenda item 

Page  9  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.15"



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

at the next scheduled meeting upon written request signed by five voting members 
to the Chair or Secretary. The Chair or Secretary receiving the request shall notify 
the officer in writing that he or she shall be subject to a removal action at the next 
scheduled meeting. At the meeting, the officer subject to the possible removal action 
may present evidence of why he or she should not be removed. If the Chair is the 
subject of the possible removal action, the Vice-Chair shall preside over the meeting 
during the agenda item concerning the Chairs removal. The officer subject to the 
removal action shall not participate in any way in the removal decision, nor shall his 
or her membership count as part of the total membership for purposes of calculating 
a two-thirds vote. The notice of the meeting shall be posted in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act and shall state that the issue of possibly removing the officer will 
be on the agenda. Any vacancy caused by the removal shall be filled as provided 
under Section 4 of this Article. 

Section 4. Vacancies of Officers 
Whenever an officer vacancy exists because of death, resignation, or removal, the 
vacancy shall be filled within thirty days of the event causing the vacancy. 
Nominations shall be made from the floor by voting members. The voting members 
shall select a replacement officer from among the nominees by not less than 
agreement of two-thirds of the voting members present. The next highest ranking 
officer shall serve in the vacant position until a successor takes office, unless the 
office of the Secretary becomes vacant, in which case the Chair shall appoint a 
willing voting member to serve as Secretary until the successor to the Secretary takes 
office. The person selected to fill a vacancy for an officer shall serve for the 
unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office. 

Section 5. Duties of Each Officer 
(a) Chair. The Chair shall be the executive officer of the NETxRWPG. The Chair 
will preside at all meetings of the NETxRWPG and perform all duties provided 
by these bylaws. If the Chair is unable to carry out his/her duties, the Vice Chair 
shall assume the duties of the Chair. 

(b) Vice Chair. The Vice Chair shall assist the Chair in the discharge of his/her 
duties and, in the absence of the Chair, shall assume the Chairs full responsibilities 
and duties. In the event the Chair is unable to carry out his/her duties, the Vice Chair 
shall serve as Chair until the NETxRWPG elects a new Chair under Section 4 of this 
Article. The Vice-Chair shall perform other duties as assigned by the Chair, or these 
bylaws. 

(c) Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall maintain the minutes and 
take attendance of the NETxRWPG meetings. The minutes and attendance shall 

Page 10 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

be kept as part of the NETxRWPG official records. The Secretary/Treasurer shall 
insure that all notices are properly posted as provided in the bylaws, as required by 
law, and as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. The Secretary/Treasurer shall 
maintain a record of revenues and expenses sufficient to meet state auditor 
requirements, under the Uniform Grant Administration Management Standards 
(UGAMS) and perform other duties as assigned by the Chair or these bylaws. If the 
both the Chair and Vice Chair are unable to carry out the duties of the Chair, the 
Secretary/Treasurer shall assume the duties of the Chair. 

Section 6. Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee shall be composed of five NETxRWPG members, 
including the Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary/Treasurer, and two members-at-large. The 
two members-at-large shall be selected annually in the same manner and with the 
same terms as set forth for the selection of officers under this Article. Members-at-
large shall be removed and their vacancies filled in the manner prescribed for officers 
under this Article. 

The Executive Committee shall be responsible for carrying out the duties imposed 
on it in these bylaws. The voting members of the NETxRWPG may delegate any 
administrative decisions to the Executive Committee unless provided otherwise in 
these bylaws. 

All meetings of the Executive Committee shall comply with the provisions related 
to meetings generally as set forth in Article IX of these bylaws. 

Section 7. Designated Alternates 
A designated alternate of a member serving as an officer shall not serve in the 
member's capacity as an officer in lieu of the member. When an officer is absent or 
otherwise unable to serve, the next highest ranking officer shall serve for the officer. 
If no lower ranking officer exists or can serve, then a member designated by the 
Chair or acting Chair shall serve for the officer. 

ARTICLE IX. MEETINGS 
Section 1. Open Meetings and Notice 
All meetings of the NETxRWPG, its committees and/or sub-groups, shall be posted 
and open to the public in the manner of a governmental body under the Texas Open 
Meetings Act and as set forth in TWDB rules. All actions of the NETxRWPG shall 
be deliberated and undertaken in open meeting, unless otherwise authorized by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. The time and place of 

Page 11 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

meetings shall be set to facilitate, to the greatest extent possible, the participation of 
the public in the regional water planning process. Copies of all materials presented 
or discussed shall be made available for public inspection prior to and following any 
meeting of the NETxRWPG. 

Section 2. Regular Meetings 
The NETxRWPG shall meet on a regular basis. At the first meeting after the 
adoption of these bylaws and the first meeting of each calendar year thereafter, the 
NETxRWPG shall establish and adopt a meeting schedule for the ensuing year. The 
Secretary shall insure that an advance notice and an agenda for regular meetings 
will be provided to the full membership of the NETxRWPG at least seventy-two 
(72) hoursseven days in advance by first class U.S. Mail, facsimile, or electronic 
mail. Supporting information and member-requested materials shall be distributed 
to the full membership with the notice and agenda or at the meeting, as deemed 
appropriate by the Chairat least three days prior to each meeting. 

Section 3. Called (Special) Meetings 
The Chair or a majority of the voting members of the NETxRWPG may call special 
meetings of the NETxRWPG. The Secretary shall insure that advance notice and an 
agenda for the called meeting is provided to the full membership of the 
NETxRWPG at least seven days seventy-two (72) hours in advance by first class 
U.S. Mail, facsimile, or electronic mail. Supporting materials for the meeting may 
be forwarded to each member at least three days prior to each meeting, as deemed 
appropriate by the Chair. 

Section 4. Agenda 
The Secretary of the NETxRWPG shall insure that an agenda is prepared and 
distributed for all meetings, in accordance with Sections 2 and 3 of this Article. 
Items shall be placed on the agenda by the request of the Chair or by the request of 
at least three voting members of the NETxRWPG. Consideration for approval of 
the previous meetings minutes, as applicable, shall always be among the first items 
on the agenda. Copies of the agenda and all supporting information shall be made 
available for public inspection prior to and following any meeting of the 
NETxRWPG. 

Section 5. Quorum 
A quorum of the NETxRWPG shall be a simple majority of the voting members or 
their designated alternates excluding vacancies. At minimum, a quorum shall be 
necessary to conduct any business of the NETxRWPG. No actions requiring a 

Page 12 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

two-thirds vote of the voting membership shall be taken during a regular business 
session, unless at least three-forthsfourths of the voting membership is present. 

Section 6.  Applicability of Robert's Rules of 
Order 

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, meetings of the NETxRWPG 
shall be conducted under the provisions of the most current edition of Robert's 
Rules of Order. However, failure to follow such rules shall not constitute 
grounds for appeal of an action or a decision of the NETxRWPG. 

Section 7.  Public Hearings/Meetings 
Required By Law 

The NETxRWPG shall post notice and conduct public hearings and public 
meetings that are specifically required by statute and/or TWDB rule, including 
those set forth for preplanning, draft regional water plan presentation, adoption of 
amendments to the regional water plan, and final regional water plan adoption, in 
accordance with the requirements of the relevant state law and/or TWDB rules. 
Notification requirements may be different than those specified in Section 1 of this 
Article and are specifically delineated in Texas Water Code 16.053 and/or 31 TAC 
§357.12. 

Section 8. Minutes 
(a) The Secretary shall insure that minutes of all meetings of the NETxRWPG 
are prepared. The minutes shall: 

(1)state the subject of each deliberation;  
(2)indicate each vote, order, decision, or other action taken; 
(3)indicate those members in attendance, noting the presence of a quorum, 
and noting the presence of those members of the public who participate in 
the course of the meeting; 
(4)represent an accurate summary of the meeting record; and state any other 
information required by these bylaws to be included in the minutes. 

(b) The Secretary shall insure that true copies of the minutes are provided to the 
full membership as soon as possible following the meeting, but no later than 
prior to the next regular meeting of the NETxRWPG. 

Page 13 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Justified, Tab stops: Not at  0.2"



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

ARTICLE X. MAKING DECISIONS 

Section 1. Applicability; No Written Proxies 
(a) Unless the method for making a particular decision is set forth in these 
bylaws, the NETxRWPG, its committees, and subgroups shall make all decisions 
utilizing the process set forth in Section 2 of this Article. 

(b) Written proxies shall not be allowed in any decision-making by the 
NETxRWPG, its committees, or its subgroups. However, designated alternates 
shall be allowed to participate in decision making as set forth in these bylaws. 
Because it is important in achieving agreement for all members to participate 
actively, keep up-to-date on the progress of the group, and develop a common 
base of information, members shall in good faith attempt to minimize the 
number of times they are absent from meetings or are represented by their 
designated alternates. 

Section 2. Decision-Making Process 
(a) The NETxRWPG shall make decisions using a voting process based upon a 
show of hands. Secret written ballots shall not be allowed during an open session. 

(b) Failure to Reach Agreement. If after good faith negotiations it appears likely to 
the Chair that the voting members will be unable to reach full agreement, the Chair 
shall entertain the following: 

a motion and a second to put the issue to a vote to be conclusively decided 
by an affirmative vote of not less than fifty-one percent of the voting 
members present. 

Section 3. Methods to Resolve Disputes 
(a) The Northeast Texas RWPG shall use methods to resolve disputes between 
regional water planning group members on matters coming before the regional 
water planning group. The method that will first be used is resolution of the 
dispute by consensus. If the consensus method fails to resolve the dispute, then 
the method used to resolve the dispute shall be by vote of the voting members of 
the Northeast Texas RWPG. Resolution by the voting method shall be by 
majority vote unless otherwise provided by an applicable section of the Bylaws 
or applicable law. This section should be construed as satisfying or exceeding 
any requirement described in 31 TAC Section §357.4(K)(6). 

Page 14 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

Section 4. Final Adoption of Regional Water 
Plan; Amendments 
The voting members of the NETxRWPG shall finally adopt the regional water plan 
for the NETxRWPA, and any amendments thereto by not less than agreement of 
two-thirds of the voting membership. 

ARTICLE XI. BOOKS AND RECORDS 

Section 1.  Required Documents and 
Retainment 

Records of the NETxRWPG, including: a current membership list with addresses, 
affiliations, and phone numbers, if not unlisted; the current roster of officers; a copy 
of the written record of designation of the political subdivision(s) as representative(s) 
of the NETxRWPG; minutes; agendas; notices; contracts, subcontracts, annual 
financial statements, and any and all financial records and supporting information; 
bylaws; records of public hearing; correspondence; memoranda; phone logs; 
committee or subgroup recommendations or findings; draft and final plans; studies; 
data of any sort; computer records or models; executive summaries; other work 
products; and any other pertinent information of a public nature shall be kept at the 
principal office of the NETxRWPG for a period of at least five years. 

Section 2. Inspection and Copying 
Records of the NETxRWPG shall be available for inspection and copying at the 
principal place of business of the representative political subdivision (Administrative 
Entity) during normal business hours. Procedures and fees for copying and 
inspection shall be the same as those used by the political subdivision housing the 
principal office of the NETxRWPG for inspection and copying of its own public 
records. 

Section 3. Availability of Reports 
All reports, planning documents, and work products resulting from projects funded 
by the TWDB shall be made available to the TWDB, the Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department, and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission or their 
successor agencies. At least one copy of the approved regional water plan 

Page 15 



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

shall be placed in the county clerk's office for each county and in at least one 
public library of each county having land within the NETxRWPA, in accordance 
with state law. 

ARTICLE XII. COMMITTEES 
Section 1. Establishment 
The NETxRWPG may by motion establish committees and subgroups to assist and 
advise the NETxRWPG in the development of the regional water management plan. 
The committee or subgroup may be formed to address specific issues assigned by the 
NETxRWPG and may have a specified term of membership. 

Section 2. Membership 
Membership in the committees and subgroups shall generally follow the 

requirements and procedures of Article V of these bylaws; membership of the 
committees and subgroups should be inclusive, rather than exclusive in nature; the 
interests identified in the initial coordinating body will be invited to participate, as 
well as other interests that have been identified. Appointment to committees or 
subgroups shall be made by not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting 
membership. The terms of office for all members of committees and subgroups 
shall be either upon the expiration of the term, if any, specified by the NETxRWPG 
in the establishing motion for the committee or subgroup, or upon the expiration of 
the person's membership in the NETxRWPG. 

Section 3. Officers 
The Chair, Vice-chair, and Secretary of a committee or subgroup established by the 
NETxRWPG shall be selected from the duly-elected members of the respective 
committee or subgroup. The Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary of the committee or 
subgroup established by the NETxRWPG shall be elected to their respective offices 
by a majority affirmative vote of the members of the committee or subgroup. 
Additional committee or subgroup officers with associated responsibilities may be 
created as necessary by a majority affirmative vote of the members of the committee 
or subgroup. The additional officers shall be elected by a majority affirmative vote 
of the members of the committee or subgroup. 

Section 4. Meetings 
Requirements and procedures for committee or subgroup meetings shall follow 
those established in Article IX of these bylaws, including requirements for notice. 
Committees or subgroups may adopt their own rules of procedure, if authorized by 

Page 16 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight



Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

the NETxRWPG and the rules are not in conflict with state law, TWDB rules, or 
these bylaws. 

Section 5. Books And Records 
Requirements and procedures for committee or subgroup books and records shall 
follow those established for the NETxRWPG in Article XI of these bylaws. 

Section 6. Code of Conduct 
Members of a committee or subgroup are subject to the requirements of Article 
V, Section 6 of these bylaws. 

ARTICLE XIII. COMPENSATION 
Members of the NETxRWPG are not to be compensated for their expenses by the 
State of Texas. All travel expenses may be documented by the members and 
submitted to the political subdivision designated by the NETxRWPG to apply to 
TWDB for funding. The political subdivision contracting with the TWDB for the 
NETxRWPG shall compile the travel information from the members, which will 
be counted as an in-kind expense at the state rate that is in effect at the time the 
travel occurred. 

ARTICLE XIV. COST ALLOCATION 
The voting members of the NETxRWPG shall develop and approve an equitable 
method or formula for the allocation of costs associated with the local match for 
state funding. 

ARTICLE XV. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
The voting members of the NETxRWPG shall make all decisions related to final 
approval of persons or entities selected by an eligible applicant to provide 
contractual services for the NETxRWPG, including all services related to 
preparation, development, or revisions of the regional water plan for the 
NETxRWPA. However, the voting members may delegate to the Executive 
Committee the authority to make administrative decisions concerning amendments 
to TWDB Research and Planning Fund grant contracts for services related to 
regional water planning, except those decisions concerning amendments related to 
scopes of work and budgets. 

Page 17 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 16 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 16 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 20 pt

Formatted: No underline



2.3  /978
Ap , 1998 Chairman

Draft Bylaws 04/28/98Bylaws Updated 8/4/21

ARTICLE XVI. ADOPTING AND AMENDING THE 
BYLAWS 

These bylaws shall have full force and effect upon approval and adoption by the 
voting members of the NETxRWPG, acting on behalf of the interests comprising the 
NETxRWPA, and upon submission to the TWDB in compliance with 31 TAC 
§357.4. The voting members shall adopt these bylaws and any amendments thereto 
by not less than agreement of two-thirds of the voting membership. 

ARTICLE XVII. RESOLUTION ADOPTING 
BYLAWS 

WHEREAS, no bylaws have been adopted governing the conduct of the internal 
affairs of the NETxRWPG; and 

WHEREAS, the set of bylaws presented to this meeting are suitable for the 
purpose and their adoption is in the best interests of the NETxRWPG; it is, 
therefore, 

RESOLVED, that the members of the NETxRWPG this 20th  day of April 1998, 
approve and adopt the bylaws presented to this meeting of members as the 
bylaws of the NETxRWPG; and it is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the bylaws be authenticated as such by the 
Secretary of the NETxRWPG and placed in its minute book, and that a full and 
true copy of the bylaws, certified by the Secretary, be kept at the principal office 
of the NETxRWPG for inspection by members or the public at all reasonable 
times during business hours. 

Page 18 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.05", Hanging:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2"



MEETING OF THE 

North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group  
WEDNESDAY, November 10, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10 

Consider adding a new Non-Voting 

Member 

 

 

Administrative Summary 

 
This item pertains to the discussion at the August 4, 2021 meeting when there was 

discussion of the process to add a new Non-Voting Member.  Mr. Thompson asked 

staff to research the process and report back to the members at the next meeting.  31 

TAC 357.11(g) states that the RWPG at its discretion, may at any time add additional 

voting and non-voting representatives to serve on the RWPG for any new interest 

category, including additional representatives of those interests already listed in 

subsection (d) of this section that the RWPG considers appropriate for water 

planning.  The bylaws in Article VI Section 2 allow for the voting members to add 

a non-voting member by two-thirds vote of the voting membership.  
 



10/6/21, 1:55 PM Texas Administrative Code

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=R&app=9&p_dir=&p_rloc=&p_tloc=&p_ploc=&pg=1&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11 1/4

<<Prev Rule
Texas Administrative Code

Next Rule>>

TITLE 31 NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION
PART 10 TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
CHAPTER 357 REGIONAL WATER PLANNING
SUBCHAPTER A GENERAL INFORMATION
RULE §357.11 Designations

(a) The Board shall review and update the designations of RWPAs as necessary but at least every five years, on
its own initiative or upon recommendation of the EA. The Board shall provide 30 days notice of its intent to
amend the designations of RWPAs by publication of the proposed change in the Texas Register and by mailing
the notice to each mayor of a municipality with a population of 1,000 or more or which is a county seat that is
located in whole or in part in the RWPAs proposed to be impacted, to each water district or river authority
located in whole or in part in the RWPA based upon lists of such water districts and river authorities obtained
from the Commission, and to each county judge of a county located in whole or in part in the RWPAs proposed
to be impacted. After the 30 day notice period, the Board shall hold a public hearing at a location to be
determined by the Board before making any changes to the designation of an RWPA.

(b) If upon boundary review the Board determines that revisions to the boundaries are necessary, the Board
shall designate areas for which RWPs shall be developed, taking into consideration factors such as:

  (1) River basin and aquifer delineations;

  (2) Water utility development patterns;

  (3) Socioeconomic characteristics;

  (4) Existing RWPAs;

  (5) Political Subdivision boundaries;

  (6) Public comment; and

  (7) Other factors the Board deems relevant.

(c) After an initial coordinating body for a RWPG is named by the Board, the RWPGs shall adopt, by two-
thirds vote, bylaws that are consistent with provisions of this chapter. Within 30 days after the Board names
members of the initial coordinating body, the EA shall provide to each member of the initial coordinating body
a set of model bylaws which the RWPG shall consider. The RWPG shall provide copies of its bylaws and any
revisions thereto to the EA. The bylaws adopted by the RWPG shall at a minimum address the following
elements:

  (1) definition of a quorum necessary to conduct business;

  (2) method to be used to approve items of business including adoption of RWPs or amendments thereto;

  (3) methods to be used to name additional members;

  (4) terms and conditions of membership;

  (5) methods to record minutes and where minutes will be archived as part of the public record; and

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=T&app=9&p_dir=P&p_rloc=199913&p_tloc=&p_ploc=1&pg=2&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=T&app=9&p_dir=N&p_rloc=199913&p_tloc=&p_ploc=1&pg=2&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=2&ti=31
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=3&ti=31&pt=10
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=4&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&sch=A&rl=Y


10/6/21, 1:55 PM Texas Administrative Code

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=R&app=9&p_dir=&p_rloc=&p_tloc=&p_ploc=&pg=1&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11 2/4

  (6) methods to resolve disputes between RWPG members on matters coming before the RWPG.

(d) RWPGs shall maintain at least one representative of each of the following interest categories as voting
members of the RWPG. However, if an RWPA does not have an interest category below, then the RWPG shall
so advise the EA and no membership designation is required.

  (1) Public, defined as those persons or entities having no economic interest in the interests represented by
paragraphs (2) - (12) of this subsection other than as a normal consumer;

  (2) Counties, defined as the county governments for the 254 counties in Texas;

  (3) Municipalities, defined as governments of cities created or organized under the general, home-rule, or
special laws of the state;

  (4) Industries, defined as corporations, partnerships, sole proprietorships, or other legal entities that are formed
for the purpose of making a profit and which produce or manufacture goods or services and which are not small
businesses;

  (5) Agricultural interests, defined as those persons or entities associated with production or processing of plant
or animal products;

  (6) Environmental interests, defined as those persons or groups advocating the conservation of the state's
natural resources, including but not limited to soil, water, air, and living resources;

  (7) Small businesses, defined as corporations, partnerships, sole proprietorships, or other legal entities that are
formed for the purpose of making a profit, are independently owned and operated, and have fewer than 500
employees or less than $10 million in gross annual receipts;

  (8) Electric generating utilities, defined as any persons, corporations, cooperative corporations, or any
combination thereof, meeting each of the following three criteria: own or operate for compensation equipment
or facilities which produce or generate electricity; produce or generate electricity for either wholesale or retail
sale to others; and are neither a municipal corporation nor a river authority;

  (9) River authorities, defined as any districts or authorities created by the legislature which contain areas
within their boundaries of one or more counties and which are governed by boards of directors appointed or
designated in whole or part by the governor or board, including, without limitation, San Antonio River
Authority;

  (10) Water districts, defined as any districts or authorities, created under authority of either Texas Constitution,
Article III, §52(b)(1) and (2), or Article XVI, §59 including districts having the authority to regulate the spacing
of or production from water wells, but not including river authorities;

  (11) Water utilities, defined as any persons, corporations, cooperative corporations, or any combination thereof
that provide water supplies for compensation except for municipalities, river authorities, or water districts; and

  (12) Groundwater management areas, defined as a single representative for each groundwater management
area that is at least partially located within an RWPA. Defined as a representative from a groundwater
conservation district that is appointed by the groundwater conservation districts within the associated
groundwater management area.

(e) The RWPGs shall add the following non-voting members, who shall receive meeting notifications and
information in the same manner as voting members:

  (1) Staff member of the Board to be designated by the EA;

  (2) Staff member of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department designated by its executive director;



10/6/21, 1:55 PM Texas Administrative Code

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=R&app=9&p_dir=&p_rloc=&p_tloc=&p_ploc=&pg=1&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11 3/4

  (3) Member designated by each adjacent RWPG to serve as a liaison;

  (4) One or more persons to represent those entities with headquarters located in another RWPA and which
holds surface water rights authorizing a diversion of 1,000 acre-feet a year or more in the RWPA, which
supplies water under contract in the amount of 1,000 acre-feet a year or more to entities in the RWPA, or which
receives water under contract in the amount of 1,000 acre-feet a year or more from the RWPA;

  (5) Staff member of the Texas Department of Agriculture designated by its commissioner; and

  (6) Staff member of the State Soil and Water Conservation Board designated by its executive director.

(f) Each RWPG shall provide a current list of its members to the EA; the list shall identify the interest
represented by each member including interests required in subsection (d) of this section.

(g) Each RWPG, at its discretion, may at any time add additional voting and non-voting representatives to serve
on the RWPG for any new interest category, including additional representatives of those interests already listed
in subsection (d) of this section that the RWPG considers appropriate for water planning.

(h) Each RWPG, at its discretion, may remove individual voting or non-voting members or eliminate RWPG
representative positions in accordance with the RWPG bylaws as long as minimum requirements of RWPG
membership are maintained in accordance with subsection (d) of this section.

(i) RWPGs may enter into formal and informal agreements to coordinate, avoid conflicts, and share information
with other RWPGs or any other interests within any RWPA for any purpose the RWPGs consider appropriate
including expediting or making more efficient water planning efforts. These efforts may involve any portion of
the RWPG membership. Any plans or information developed through these efforts by RWPGs or by
committees may be included in an RWP only upon approval of the RWPG.

(j) Upon request, the EA will provide technical assistance to RWPGs, including on water supply and demand
analysis, methods to evaluate the social and economic impacts of not meeting needs, and regarding Drought
Management Measures and water conservation practices.

(k) The Board shall appoint an Interregional Planning Council during each state water planning cycle. The
Interregional Planning Council will be subject to the following provisions:

  (1) The Interregional Planning Council consists of one voting member from each RWPG, as appointed by the
Board.

  (2) Upon request by the EA, each RWPG shall submit at least one nomination for appointment, including a
designated alternate for each nomination.

  (3) Interregional Planning Council members will serve until adoption of the State Water Plan.

  (4) The Interregional Planning Council, during each planning cycle to develop the State Water Plan, shall hold
at least one public meeting and deliver a report to the Board. The report format may be determined by the
Council. The report at a minimum shall include a summary of the dates the Council convened, the actions
taken, minutes of the meetings, and any recommendations for the Board's consideration, based on the Council's
work. Meeting frequency, location, and additional report content shall be determined by the Council.

  (5) For the planning cycle of the 2022 State Water Plan, the Council's report shall be delivered to the Board by
a date established by the EA, which will be no later than adoption of the 2022 State Water Plan. Beginning with
the planning cycle for the 2027 State Water Plan and each planning cycle thereafter, the report shall be
delivered to the Board no later than one year prior to the IPP deliverable date for the corresponding State Water
Plan cycle, as set in regional water planning contracts.



10/6/21, 1:55 PM Texas Administrative Code

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=R&app=9&p_dir=&p_rloc=&p_tloc=&p_ploc=&pg=1&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=357&rl=11 4/4

Source Note: The provisions of this §357.11 adopted to be effective August 12, 2012, 37 TexReg 5797;
amended to be effective December 8, 2016, 41 TexReg 9589; amended to be effective April 11, 2018, 43
TexReg 2158; amended to be effective June 28, 2020, 45 TexReg 4211

        List of Titles                  Back to List          

| | |

http://www.sos.texas.gov/
http://www.sos.texas.gov/texreg/index.shtml
http://www.sos.texas.gov/tac/index.shtml
http://www.sos.texas.gov/open/index.shtml



